## Fall 2025

## Contents

Course Description	2
Course Outcomes	2
Topics	2
Course Materials	2
Instructional Team	2
Instructional Delivery	3
Instructional Method	3
Instructional Tool – Canvas	3
Grading and Assessments	3
Course Project	4
Use of Artificial Intelligence (AI)*	4
Late Submission	5
Feedback, Checking Grades, Resolving Grade Disputes	5
Important Dates	5
Classroom Expectations	5
Attendance	7
Deadlines	7
Extra Credit	7
Last Date of Attendance	7
Inclusivity	7
Title IX	8
Student Responsibility and Academic Integrity	8
Accessibility	8
Support and Student Services	9
Food and Shelter Insecurity	9
Police and Public Safety	9
Make-up Policy	9
Incomplete Grade	10
University Policy on Withdrawals	10
Audit Policy	10
Course Material Use	10
How to Get Course Material Help	10
Technology Requirements	10
Technology Skills	11
How to Get Technology Help	11
Sullabus Davisions	11

#### **Course Description**

In this studio, students learn the ethical use of machine learning to develop models and predictive features from unstructured data to explore a data science approach to socially relevant challenges. Validity of predictions are be analyzed using appropriate statistical hypothesis tests. The ethical implications of collecting and using data from external sources are also discussed.

## **Course Outcomes**

After completing this course, you will be able to:

- Define predictive analytics questions
- Identify, gather and pre-process data needed for the analysis
- Identify the appropriate method for a predictive analysis problem
- Demonstrate building effective predictive models using machine learning algorithms
- Develop familiarity with popular tools and software used for predictive analytics
- Test the validity of predictive models and interpret and report on results
- Explain the implications of bias and variance in data on the performance of predictive models to both data science professionals and laypersons in related fields.
- Understand and explain the policy and consequences of different research and the role of AI in decision making to both data science professionals and laypersons in related fields.

#### **Topics**

- The Data Science Methodology A review
- Problem Understanding Domain Introduction
- Data Preparation
- Data Exploration and Predictive Bias
- Modeling Baseline
- Modeling and Evaluation
- Cross Validation
- Overfitting and underfitting
- Unstructured Data
- Working with Text Data
- Unsupervised Learning
- Clustering
- Evaluation
- Bias-Variance Tradeoff
- Data Storytelling

#### **Course Materials**

- Students must have access to a laptop computer that they can use during class meetings.
  - $\circ$  Linux, Windows 10, or macOS operating system preferred. ChromeOS will suffice but has limitations.
- All software required for the course is free and open source.
- · Reading material
  - Virginia Eubanks. 2018. Automating Inequality: How High-Tech Tools Profile, Police, and Punish the Poor. St. Martin's Press, Inc., USA.
  - All other readings for the course will either be open source or available for free through the University library.

#### **Instructional Team**

## Instructors:

- Dr. Nadia Najjar, nanajjar@uncc.edu, Woodward Hall 330F.
- Dr. Shannon Reid, <a href="mailto:sreid33@uncc.edu">sreid33@uncc.edu</a>, Colvard 5082.

## Instructional Assistants (IA):

- Owen Althouse oalthous@charlotte.edu
- Shuai Shao sshao3@charlotte.edu
- TBD

Fall 2025 Page 2 of 11

Office hours details are available on the course's Canvas page.

## **Instructional Delivery**

Our weekly schedule is set so that we will meet as a class, in person, on Tuesdays and Thursdays from 10:00am to 12:45pm. You are expected to be present and participate in all classes and labs at the assigned time and place. Attendance is not optional and will be considered in the final course grade.

#### Instructional Method

This course follows teaching methods grounded in an interdisciplinary studio style approach to learning in which students are presented with cross-disciplinary data science challenges that guide the mini-lectures, in-class activities, and group data-driven projects. Students are expected to participate in discussions, problem-solving, critical thinking exercises, analysis of case studies, collaboration, peer-teaching, and design and critique sessions. All students are expected to contribute in a meaningful way to team efforts. The course includes small group writing and presentation assignments that are the basis for formative assessment.

Your active participation in the material, the meetings, and various online forums will be important in helping you accomplish the goals of the course. By providing resources that you can repeat as often as you like, control over course success is in your hands. However, if you need help all you have to do is ask. All the members of the Instructional Team are ready and eager to assist you in the process of learning more about predictive analytics. Please do not be afraid to ask questions and seek help. We promise you all of us struggled with some of these concepts when we were learning to program. We are happy to help you.

Scheduled meeting times will be devoted to completing activities (design, present, critique, ...) discussing concepts, and participating in-class exercises as well as presentations by the Instructional Team and students. Activities involve collaborative group activities that provide hands-on computational thinking and data analysis experiences.

#### Instructional Tool - Canvas

We will be using Canvas, the primary Course Management System for UNC Charlotte, as our digital learning environment in this course. To access your Canvas course please go to <a href="http://canvas.uncc.edu">http://canvas.uncc.edu</a>. You may log in with your NinerNet username and password to access your Canvas courses. If you encounter any problems logging into Canvas, please contact the student help desk at <a href="http://helpdesk.uncc.edu">http://helpdesk.uncc.edu</a>. Other student computing information is available at the Student Computing Help Center at <a href="http://itservices.uncc.edu/student-services/help-services">http://itservices.uncc.edu/student-services/help-services</a>. Please monitor the course Canvas site, message boards, and your UNCC email on a regular basis to ensure you remain fully informed. Assignments <a href="must">must</a> be submitted as described in Canvas.

## **Grading and Assessments**

Grading will be based on the following scale:

Α	90% – 100%
В	80% – 89%
С	70% – 79%
D	60% – 69%
F	0% – 59%

Breakdown (tentative)

Course Element	Value
Studio and Coursework	30%
Teamwork and Engagement	20%
Project	50%

**Studio and Coursework** - As the name implies, these are activities that you are expected to work on during class meeting. These activities are there to assist you in being an active learner – engaged and participating in the course. Students who do the bare minimum will receive little credit for being active learners. To demonstrate your engagement in the course, you may be asked to complete reflections, conduct peer reviews, and participate actively in the course's discussions. The effort and quality of your participation, a largely subjective measure, will determine your grade.

**Teamwork and Engagement** emphasizes how you contribute to your team's progress and to the overall learning environment of the course. This grade reflects not only the quantity but the quality of your participation. Students who only

Fall 2025 Page 3 of 11

complete their individual tasks without actively collaborating, communicating, or supporting their team will receive little credit.

To demonstrate your engagement, you are expected to attend and contribute to team meetings, communicate consistently with your group, share responsibility for the work, and participate in resolving challenges constructively. Engagement also includes being an active member of the broader course community; providing peer feedback, asking questions, and responding thoughtfully to instructor and peer input.

The effort and professionalism you bring to teamwork, along with peer evaluations and instructor observations, will determine your grade. Teamwork and Engagement is a subjective measure, but it is critical to your growth as both a student and a collaborator.

**Project** - This project will give you experience working as a member of a team to identify an issue or problem (related to the overall theme of the course); reach a consensus about the objectives and purpose of your project; to develop a project plan that will actively and equally involve all team members, and to ultimately produce a report that accurately reflects the work and analysis your team did and achieves the objectives identified at the project's outset. The project is divided into several milestones where your team will be expected to submit drafts and present specific sections of the project for feedback to be incorporated in the final project submission.

Students are required to use Canvas for all course submissions. It is your responsibility to ensure your work is successfully uploaded before the expiration of the submission period. Please note that the submission deadline is according to the Canvas system clock which might be different from your personal or computer clock and even narrowly missed submissions will be marked as late.

## **Course Project**

The main component of our course is participating in a project and working within a team. Students will be placed in teams of 3-4 students working on a predictive analytics project. The goal of this project is to practice and utilize the major prediction methods and tools in a practical context. Teams will work on addressing a specific problem within certain constraints and requirements. During the semester students will be given opportunities to come up to speed on the programming languages and/or software technologies needed for this project. The project will include several milestones/sprints for teams to work on drafts, receive feedback and complete revisions. It is imperative that students take advantage of all the practice opportunities presented in the course to be better prepared for the project deliverables. A project grade will be adjusted for their individual contribution to the project deliverables.

## Use of Artificial Intelligence (AI)\*

\* This section was created in collaboration with ChatGPT-3.5.

In this course, we recognize the value and potential of artificial intelligence (AI) as a tool for learning and problem-solving. We encourage you to explore and utilize AI technologies to enhance your understanding, receive feedback on your work, augment your problem-solving capabilities, and contribute to your overall learning experience.

It is important to note the following guidelines when incorporating AI into your coursework:

- 1. When utilizing AI technologies, it is crucial to uphold ethical standards. Ensure that your use of AI aligns with the course objectives and assignments, respects the rights of others, and complies with any relevant legal and institutional guidelines.
- 2. Do not copy Al generated output and claim it as your own. If you incorporate Al-generated or Al-assisted work in your assignments, clearly indicate the involvement of Al and provide proper attribution to the Al tools or models used. In other words, you must (a) credit the tool, and (b) identify what part of the work is from the Al tool and what is your own work.
- 3. This promotes transparency and acknowledges the contributions of AI in your academic work.
- 4. While AI can be a valuable tool, remember that the primary focus of the course is on your learning and understanding of the subject matter. AI should complement your learning process and help you achieve the learning outcomes of the course, rather than replacing or overshadowing your individual efforts and critical thinking.
- 5. If the use of AI involves data collection or processing, ensure that you comply with privacy and data protection regulations. Be mindful of the data you store, or share, and take necessary precautions to maintain the confidentiality and security of any sensitive information.

Fall 2025 Page 4 of 11

Please note that while the use of AI is encouraged, it should not replace your active engagement with the course material, critical thinking, and independent learning. AI should be seen as a tool to support and enhance your learning experience, providing additional insights and capabilities. Use it to support your learning, not replace it!

Refer to the *Collaborating and Programming with AI* page under the resources module on Canvas to learn more about ways to effectively use these tools.

#### Late Submission

All course content has been mapped so that later work builds on material that has already been covered so it is important not to get behind. Occasionally there might be circumstances that prevent you from meeting a deadline. Don't panic! Immediately reach out to the instructional team via email and we can discuss accommodations. However, keep in mind that late submissions may delay the beginning of the next activity in Canvas and/or have a negative impact on your progress in the course. Unless explicitly authorized by the instructors or as a clearly indicated part of the exercise, late submissions will not be considered. Note that any auto-graded submissions will be adjusted as a result of missed deadlines.

#### Feedback, Checking Grades, Resolving Grade Disputes

The course will utilize some auto-grading and feedback features available in some of the digital learning tools. Assessments that have this feature will provide instant feedback and grades to you. Many grades will be reflected in the Canvas gradebook automatically, but some situations will require the Instructional Team to transfer grades to Canvas. Submissions that require manual review will typically be graded and feedback given to you as soon as possible. If you believe an error has been made in grading or there is a grade discrepancy in Canvas, you must notify the responsible TA immediately. If you and the TA cannot come to an agreement about resolving the dispute you may email me. You are responsible for checking grades and addressing feedback within a reasonable time after grades are posted. Appeals of subjective judgments made by the instructors or the TAs will not be successful.

To resolve disputes about grades or whether a submission was within the deadline, please always take and save a screenshot of the confirmation page that shows the assignment submission. Without such a screenshot your grade in Canvas cannot be modified. Confirmation screenshots must include unambiguous information that identifies you, (i.e., your name visible on the screenshot, not a typed or written name on the screenshot), an identification of the assignment, and the date and time the assignment was submitted. Altered screenshots will result in a 0 grade and a possible academic integrity violation. Directions for making screenshots will be provided upon request.

#### **Important Dates**

It is the student's responsibility to be aware of important milestones during the semester such as submission deadlines for assignments, quizzes, and test dates, as well as registration deadlines and drop dates. These are available either on the Canvas course page or UNC Charlotte <u>Academic Calendar</u>. Another effective resource for dates and university regulations and process is <u>Niner Central</u>.

#### **Classroom Expectations**

Classroom expectations represent the social contract between us. While this semester our classroom expectations must be adjusted to minimize the effects of the pandemic, here are some general guidelines for us to follow:

- 1. Attendance. Attendance may be used in determining your final course grade. You are encouraged to attend every class meeting and participate for the duration of the meeting session. Attendance and participation will help you achieve the course objectives. Not attending or participating does not relieve you of the responsibility for knowing information discussed in class. See the Instructional Delivery and Attendance sections for more details.
- 2. **Absences**. The authority to excuse your absence(s) or to grant you any academic accommodation (for example, to turn in an assignment late, provide extra time for an assignment, or to reschedule an exam) is mine alone. Please contact the instructors directly if you have a need for an accommodation. For official documentation of serious or long-term situations related to medical, psychological, personal crisis, or military absence, the office of <a href="Student Assistance and Support Services">Student Assistance and Support Services</a> will assist you.
- 3. Class Discussion. We will conduct this class in an atmosphere of mutual respect. We encourage your active participation in class discussions. Each of us may have strongly differing opinions on the various topics of class discussions. The conflict of ideas is encouraged and welcome. The orderly questioning of the ideas of others, including mine, is similarly welcome. However, we will exercise our responsibility to manage the discussions so that ideas and arguments can proceed in an

Fall 2025 Page 5 of 11

- orderly fashion. You should expect that if your class discussion conduct seriously disrupts the atmosphere of mutual respect we expect in this class, you will not be permitted to participate further.
- 4. **Teamwork.** Successful collaboration requires considerable cooperation as well as respect for the differences among team members. Team members must listen well, be sensitive to others, and offer encouragement and constructive suggestions for improvement. Above all, collaborators must learn to negotiate and compromise in the best interests of the group and the achievement of the team's goal. You must agree to cooperate with each other and should assign responsibilities at the outset. If a team member isn't fulfilling his or her responsibilities, work as a group to encourage that person to participate. If you don't succeed, one option is to make an appointment for the team to ask the instructors to mediate.
- 5. **Notification of Changes**. My primary means of communication with you during the semester will be via our course's Canvas site and UNC Charlotte e-mail. It is your responsibility to check the Canvas site and your email frequently; you are responsible for knowing the contents of the Canvas site at all times and you are responsible for everything we post on the course Discussion forum or send to your email address. Not checking these resources does not relieve you of the consequences of knowing and responding appropriately to information we send. Part of being an active learner in this course is being actively engaged. For our part, we will give you as much warning of changes as We possibly can.
- 6. **Communication Etiquette**. It is important in this course that we all work together to develop a collaborative, safe, and friendly environment. One way of doing so is through respectful communication. The <a href="UNCC Netiquette Guidelines">UNCC Netiquette Guidelines</a> contain useful information on composing emails and other online communication. In addition to these guidelines, please make sure you write in complete sentences and avoid abbreviations and "text-speak".
- 7. **Virtual Meeting Etiquette**. Just like email or face-to-face communication, it is important that we all create a virtual meeting space when one is utilized, that is conducive to learning, collaborating and having fun. Our class Zoom guidelines page contains a list of things that you should keep in mind when we meet online using Zoom or any other platform.
- 8. Contacting the Instructional Team. In addition to the above guidelines, we also expect that all course questions be posted to the course Discussion forum so everyone in the class can benefit from the reply. Feel free to post your own responses to questions on the Discussion forum; you do not have to wait for one of the Instructional Team to respond. If a question or concern is something of a personal and private nature, you should send a private message to the instructors. Always include your UNCC Student ID in all communications. While we try to answer questions quickly, sometimes it may take up to 24 hours during the week or longer over the weekend for a response. Multiple emails will not speed up the response.
- 9. **Use of English**. Students for whom English is not a primary language are encouraged to contact the instructors if they experience any difficulty understanding lecture material or textbooks. As long as they do not include definitions, we permit the use of word-for-word correspondence electronic dictionaries when taking tests. If you feel the need to use one, please see the instructors before using one during a test or other graded activity.
- 10. **E-Mail Account**. Per University policy, you <u>must</u> have and use your official University e-mail account. It is to this account that we will direct all e-mail communications. Due to privacy concerns and FERPA restrictions, we will not send e-mail to other than your official University address. You may forward to a personal account if you like but you are still responsible for anything, we send to your University account, even if the forward fails.
- 11. **Disability Accommodation**. If you are one of the many students facing challenges, regardless of whether you choose to formally register, please do not hesitate to contact me. We will do everything we can to assist you in completing the course successfully. However, students with disabilities should contact the Office of Disability Services if an official accommodation is sought for the course. For more information see the Accessibility section below.
- 12. **Sequenced Knowledge**. This is a very important point, please make sure you follow it. The material in this course is carefully sequenced and each new topic depends heavily on what has come before. Solutions you develop in an early activity might be used in later ones so keep track of your documents and any software you develop! The best advice we can give you is "Do <u>not</u> get behind!". This is not the kind of course where you can delay preparing until just before a test or a few days before a programming assignment is due. You must watch the videos, read the textbook, and complete any assigned interactive activities before each week's Tuesday workshop starts. The course is designed in a way that will help you assess how well you are understanding the concepts and where you need to focus more of your efforts to learn the material. Everyone learns at their own pace so if you are struggling with the homework, it just means that you need to seek help from me, one of the TAs, the college tutoring center, or your peers, so that we can help you learn the material. Because of the sequencing, you may not do well on later activities if you do not take action to seek help on coursework that you do not understand. The expectation is that you will show up to our meetings prepared. The path to success begins with you doing the work before\_class and utilizing the resources we have provided. If you are unsure of how to study this kind of material, please let the instructors know. We will be happy to help you develop strategies so you can succeed. Please remember, that we will guide you to the material, and learning it is your responsibility but I'm here to help you. Please don't feel like you have to do this all on your own. But also remember that if we don't hear

Fall 2025 Page 6 of 11

from you about problems you're having then we can't help you. Learning is <u>your</u> responsibility as is asking for help whenever you need it.

#### Attendance

While attendance is not graded directly, it is closely tied to your Teamwork and Engagement grade. If you are not present, you cannot fully collaborate with your team, contribute to in-class activities, or engage in discussions that support your learning. Occasional absences with communication will not affect your grade, but repeated absences or lack of participation will lower your Teamwork and Engagement score, since this component reflects both your reliability to your team and your active presence in the course community.

#### **Deadlines**

Meeting all course expectations and task deadlines is your responsibility. If you are sick or have some other valid reason for not being active in the class, you should send the instructors a message as soon as you are able to. The Dean of Students Office can assist faculty members in the verification a student's class absence(s) for documented situation related to medical, psychological, personal crisis, or military absences. If an emergency situation arises that interferes with your ability to meet the course expectations for an extended period of time, please immediately go through the Office of the Dean of Students. Such emergencies often will impact more than one class and the Office of the Dean of Students will advocate on your behalf to request accommodations for any affected classes.

#### Extra Credit

We expect you to reach out immediately to any member of the Instructional Team via the communication channels used for this course if you run into difficulties with the course so that we can help you be successful. We will not be able to help if you wait until the end of the semester and have earned a lower score than you wanted or needed! Towards the end of the semester when you ask if there is anything you can do to improve your course grade the answer will be, "No." We do not give extra credit to compensate for prior work performed poorly or skipped entirely. However, We are willing to make reasonable accommodations to help you through situations beyond your control (see Make-up Policy below).

#### Last Date of Attendance

The United States Department of Education requires UNC Charlotte's Office of Financial Aid to determine if a student who receives financial aid and fails to earn a passing grade in a course has actually attended and/or completed the course. Because we may not be able to take regular attendance for this course, the date we will report as your last date of attendance will be the latest of the following:

- The date you last participated in an online discussion or activity;
- The date you last submitted an assignment/project/test/tutorial/quiz; or
- The date you last initiated contact with the instructors to ask a question about the course or course content.

If you earn an F or U grade, your last date of attendance will be reported to the United States Department of Education. This may require you to pay back any financial aid funds received for this course.

For additional information, see <u>Last Date of Attendance FAQs</u> on the Registrar's website.

## Inclusivity

This course affirms people of all categories. If you prefer to be called a different name than what is indicated on the class roster, please let the instructors know and we will change all the course content over which we have control. Although memorizing everyone's preferred pronoun might not be possible, feel free to correct us if we use the wrong one(s) and we do our best to use the one(s) you prefer. We're all unique and as we expect you to respect my beliefs, we will respect yours. Whoever you are as a person won't have the slightest impact on you being successful in this course. Feel free to be you.

Our job is to guide you through learning topics related to prediction techniques and analysis, at least for most of you, that's a part of your degree program. We will not countenance any behavior that gets in the way of our accomplishing that goal. You may be under the misapprehension that you have free will inside the classroom. You don't. As a public university, UNCC is legally permitted to place reasonable time, place, and manner restrictions on speech activities. This is way too complex to argue over so let's limit our in-class discussions to the elements of predictive analytics and their impacts. Outside of class if you want to advocate for causes important to you then have a ball.

Fall 2025 Page 7 of 11

**Non-Discrimination**: All students and the Instructional Team are expected to engage with each other respectfully. Unwelcome conduct directed toward another person based upon that person's actual or perceived race, actual or perceived gender, color, religion, age, national origin, ethnicity, disability, or veteran status, or for any other reason, may constitute a violation of University Policy 406, The Code of Student Responsibility. Any student suspected of engaging in such conduct will be referred to the Office of Student Conduct for possible conduct action or the Title IX Office. Based on such referral, the Director or designee will determine whether a Formal Charge(s) shall be pursued and whether the Formal Charge(s) constitutes a Minor Violation or a Serious Violation, based on the Student's prior record or facts and circumstances related to the case.

#### Title IX

UNC Charlotte is committed to providing an environment free of all forms of discrimination and sexual harassment, including sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking. If you (or someone you know) has experienced or experiences any of these incidents, know that you are not alone. UNC Charlotte has staff members trained to support you in navigating campus life, accessing health and counseling services, providing academic and housing accommodations, helping with legal protective orders, and more.

Please be aware that many UNC Charlotte employees, including all faculty members such as me, are considered Responsible Employees who are required to relay any information or reports of sexual misconduct they receive to the Title IX Coordinator. This means that if you tell the instructional team about a situation involving sexual harassment, sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking, we must report the information to the Title IX Coordinator - we have no choice in this matter as a matter of law. Although we must report the situation, you will still have options about how your case will be handled, including whether or not you wish to pursue a formal complaint. Our goal is to make sure you are aware of the range of options available to you and have access to the resources you need.

If you wish to speak to someone confidentially, you can contact any of the following on-campus resources, who are not required to report the incident to the Title IX Coordinator: (1) University Counseling Center (<a href="counselingcenter.uncc.edu">counselingcenter.uncc.edu</a>, 7-0311); (2) Student Health Center (<a href="studenthealth.uncc.edu">studenthealth.uncc.edu</a>, 7-7400); or (3) Center for Wellness Promotion (<a href="wellness.uncc.edu">wellness.uncc.edu</a>, 7-7407). Additional information about your options is also available at <a href="titleix.uncc.edu">titleix.uncc.edu</a> under the "Students" tab.

#### Student Responsibility and Academic Integrity

You are responsible for reading and understanding the <u>Code of Student Responsibility</u> and the <u>Code of Student Academic</u> <u>Integrity</u>. Read the overview as well as the specific policies.

The purpose of the Code of Student Responsibility (the Code) is to protect the campus community and to maintain an environment conducive to learning. University rules for student conduct are discussed in detail. All students are required to abide by the UNC Charlotte Sexual Harassment Policy and the policy on Standards for Responsible Use. Sexual harassment, as defined in the UNC Charlotte Sexual Harassment Policy, is prohibited, even when carried out through computers or other electronic communications systems, including course-based chat rooms or message boards. Submissions that are not appropriate in an academic setting, subject to my discretion, will not be accepted for a grade.

You are expected to comply fully with the university's policy on academic integrity. Among other things, this code forbids cheating, fabrication or falsification of information, multiple submission of academic work, plagiarism, abuse of academic materials, and complicity in academic dishonesty. It is my policy that instances of cheating can expect to be punished, at a minimum, by a failing grade for the course and/or referral to the office of Student Conduct and Academic Integrity at my discretion.

If you are found responsible for dishonesty of any type, at a minimum you can expect to fail the course. But there are other university-level consequences for academic misconduct. The maximum punishment for academic dishonesty is expulsion from the University. Please don't be one of those students. If you have any questions about whether something might be prohibited, please ask the instructional team before you do it.

#### Accessibility

UNC Charlotte is committed to access to education. The <u>Office of Disability Services</u> works with current undergraduate and graduate students, as well as with prospective students, to ensure equal access to UNC Charlotte's campus and educational programs.

Fall 2025 Page 8 of 11

If you have a disability and need academic accommodations in this course, please provide a letter of accommodation from Disability Services. For more information on accommodations, contact the Office of Disability Services at <a href="mailto:disability@uncc.edu">disability@uncc.edu</a>, or call 704-687-0040. All services are dependent upon verification of eligibility. Once approved for services, students receive accommodations which are based upon the nature of an individual's disability and documented needs. Students are strongly encouraged to register or check-in for their accommodations with a Disability Services counselor as soon as they have registered for classes. Accommodations are not retroactive and will not begin until the student notifies his or her instructor(s) by providing the Letter of Accommodation.

Students with an accommodation are expected to monitor the time they have available for tests and quizzes and to report to the instructors immediately (even during such an exercise) if they feel the appropriate amount of time has not been provided.

In this course, every effort has been made to use accessible software and materials. Please notify the instructors if you face any issues accessing course requirements or content. More information on the accessibility of the programs frequently used in this course can be found below:

- Canvas: https://www.canvaslms.com/accessibility
- Microsoft: https://www.microsoft.com/enable/microsoft/mission.aspx
- Adobe: http://www.adobe.com/accessibility.html

#### **Support and Student Services**

It is common for college students to experience challenges that may interfere with academic success such as academic stress, sleep problems, prioritizing multiple responsibilities, life events, relationship concerns, or feelings of anxiety, hopelessness, or depression. If you or a friend is struggling, we strongly encourage you to seek support. Helpful, effective resources are available on campus at no additional cost.

If you are struggling academically with this class, please connect with the instructional team during office hours or contact us by email.

Meet with your academic advisor if you are struggling academically in multiple classes, unsure whether you are making the most of your time at UNC Charlotte, or unsure what academic resources are available at UNC Charlotte.

Visit the Counseling and Psychological Services (CAPS) website at <u>caps.uncc.edu</u> for information about the broad range of confidential on-campus mental health services, online health assessments, hours, and additional information. Call CAPS at (704) 687-0311 if interested in scheduling an appointment with a counselor. After-hours crisis support is also available through this phone number.

For other help, be sure to take advantage of the wealth of resources and support available at UNC Charlotte. Some of the resources available to you include the <u>University Writing Resource Center</u>, <u>University Career Center</u>, and the <u>J. Murrey Atkins Library</u>. The <u>Student Services Online Backpack</u> will help connect you to these resources.

## Food and Shelter Insecurity

Any student who has difficulty affording groceries or accessing sufficient food to eat every day, or who lacks a safe and stable place to live, and believes this may affect their performance in the course, is urged to contact <a href="Student Assistance and Support Services">Student Assistance and Support Services</a> (SASS) under the Dean of Students Office for support. Furthermore, please notify the instructors if you are comfortable in doing so. This will enable the instructors to provide any resources we may have knowledge of.

## Police and Public Safety

Campus security is provided for all students (this includes providing escorts to parking lots). For emergencies call college security at (704) 687-2200. For non-emergencies call 704-687-8300 (Police and Public Safety).

## Make-up Policy

Make-up requests will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. We will make reasonable accommodations for life events or situations beyond your control, but we expect this privilege not to be abused. Make-up requests may not be granted; therefore, you should work on any tasks as soon as they are available. Plus a huge component of our course is work completed during our scheduled meetings.

Fall 2025 Page 9 of 11

To protect your privacy, medical and/or other personal documentation (i.e., military obligation, death in the family, etc.) should be sent to the Dean of Students Office (<u>DSO</u>). The DSO office will contact the instructors if the documentation has been reviewed and validated. Students seeking religious accommodations should review the religious accommodation policy (<u>Religious Accommodation Policy</u>).

#### Incomplete Grade

An incomplete (I) grade <u>may</u> be given only if a substantial amount of the course requirements has been completed and there are mitigating circumstances prohibiting the completion of all requirements prior to the end of the course (review the <u>Incomplete policy</u>). The incomplete should be resolved within a minimal period but in no case more than one calendar year from the end of the term in which the grade was assigned. After one year the "I" automatically becomes an "F" if not resolved.

## University Policy on Withdrawals

Students are expected to complete all courses for which they are registered at the close of the add/drop period. If you are concerned about your ability to succeed in this course, it is important to make an appointment to speak with the instructors as soon as possible. The University policy on <a href="withdrawal">withdrawal</a> allows students only a limited number of opportunities available to withdraw from courses. It is important for you to understand the financial and academic consequences that may result from course withdrawal.

#### **Audit Policy**

To audit a course you must comply with the procedures outlined in the university academic policy on <u>registration</u> (see Auditing A Course). An <u>audit request form</u> must be submitted and approved by the instructors during the first week of the semester.

#### Course Material Use

Lectures and course materials, including presentations, tests, exams, outlines, and similar materials, are protected by copyright. You may take notes and make copies of course materials for their own educational use. However, you may not, nor may you knowingly allow others to reproduce or publicly distribute course materials including, but not limited to, lecture notes, assignments, or tests without the express written consent of the instructor(s). This includes providing materials to commercial course material suppliers such as Course Hero, Chegg, Quizlet, GitHub, or other similar services. Students who publicly distribute or display or help others publicly distribute or display copies or modified copies of an instructor's course materials may be in violation of University Policy 406, The Code of Student Responsibility.

#### How to Get Course Material Help

- Course Discussion Board Your first resource for help should be the Course Discussion board. Ask all <u>non-personal</u> questions about the course and content here. To be clear, not understanding a concept or encountering an error you don't know how to correct is <u>not</u> a personal problem. We appreciate that it can be embarrassing to be confused by the material, especially one you have worked to try to understand. But class members can be valuable resources and can often provide you with answers or insights before the TAs or we can. Sometimes you'll ask us a question and we won't know the answer right away myself. So please don't be afraid to admit you need help. And if you see a question on the Discussion board and know the answer, by all means answer it!
- CCI Tutoring Center Get free tutoring tailored to CCI courses by scheduling an appointment through Connect.
- For personal issues and concerns:
  - Schedule an appointment with the instructors for personal questions or concerns
  - Send a message to the TAs via Canvas

## **Technology Requirements**

To succeed in this course, you will need frequent and regular access to the following hardware and software:

- A desktop or laptop computer with consistent high-speed access to the internet (can be purchased at a discount in <a href="NinerTech">NinerTech</a> store in the Student Union).
- Speakers or headphones for listening to online videos (can be purchased at numerous locations)
- A productivity suite such as Microsoft Office (download for free: <a href="https://ninertech.uncc.edu/office-365">https://ninertech.uncc.edu/office-365</a>) or Google cloud-based productivity tools
- Adobe Reader (download for free: <a href="https://get.adobe.com/reader/">https://get.adobe.com/reader/</a>)

Fall 2025 Page 10 of 11

 A web browser such as Google Chrome (download for free: https://www.google.com/chrome/browser/desktop/index.html)

## **Technology Skills**

To succeed in this course, you will need to know how to do the following:

- Navigate our Canvas course site
- Download and install software to your computer
- Copy and paste
- Send email
- Add attachments to emails
- Post and reply in the course Discussion forum
- Write and save documents in word processing software (Word)
- Take a screenshot of a computer window
- Submit documents and assignments to Canvas for grading

## How to Get Technology Help

For Canvas help:

- Canvas 24/7 Support Live Chat
- Canvas 24/7 Support Line: 877-257-9780
- Canvas Help Center
- Canvas Guides
- Canvas Video Guide

For computer help, contact the ITS Help Desk at 704-687-5500

## **Syllabus Revisions**

We reserve the right to modify the standards and requirements set forth in this syllabus at any time to respond to changing circumstances or new information or to correct errors or inaccuracies. Notice of such changes will be posted to Canvas and usually accompanied an Announcement. It is always your responsibility to be aware of the requirements of this course.

Fall 2025 Page 11 of 11